# Getting Started with the Xilinx Spartan-6 FPGA SP605 Evaluation Kit

UG525 (v1.3) March 29, 2011



XPM 0402789-01



© Copyright 2009 – 2011 Xilinx, Inc. Xilinx, the Xilinx logo, Artix, ISE, Kintex, Spartan, Virtex, Zynq, and other designated brands included herein are trademarks of Xilinx in the United States and other countries. [If applicable, insert relevant third-party sentence.] All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

#### DISCLAIMER

The information disclosed to you hereunder (the "Materials") is provided solely for the selection and use of Xilinx products. To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law: (1) Materials are made available "AS IS" and with all faults, Xilinx hereby DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS, EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT, OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE; and (2) Xilinx shall not be liable (whether in contract or tort, including negligence, or under any other theory of liability) for any loss or damage of any kind or nature related to, arising under, or in connection with, the Materials (including your use of the Materials), including for any direct, indirect, special, incidental, or consequential loss or damage (including loss of data, profits, goodwill, or any type of loss or damage suffered as a result of any action brought by a third party) even if such damage or loss was reasonably foreseeable or Xilinx had been advised of the possibility of the same. Xilinx assumes no obligation to correct any errors contained in the Materials, or to advise you of any corrections or update. You may not reproduce, modify, distribute, or publicly display the Materials without prior written consent. Certain products are subject to the terms and support terms contained in a license issued to you by Xilinx. Xilinx products are not designed or intended to be fail-safe or for use in any application requiring fail-safe performance; you assume sole risk and liability for use of Xilinx products in Critical Applications: http://www.xilinx.com/warranty.htm#critapps.

## **Revision History**

Date	Version	Revision
11/13/09	1.0	Initial Xilinx release.
12/02/09	1.0.1	Initial release to Web. Minor typographical edits.
06/07/10	1.1	Removed references to ISE software, version 11.1 and 11.3. Removed Figure 1-21 through Figure 1-29, Figure 1-39 through Figure 1-49 and text associated with the figures.
10/15/10	1.2	Updated Figure 1-1, page 8. Revised "Installing the ISE Software," page 23 describing the use of the software voucher as part of the software registration process.
03/29/11	1.3	Updated Legal DISCLAIMER. Revised Figure 1-1, page 8. Updated website and document links on page 31.

The following table shows the revision history for this document.

## Table of Contents

Introduction
SP605 Evaluation Kit Contents
Key Features
Spartan-6 FPGA
Configuration
Memory
Communications and Networking 6
Expansion Connectors
Clocking
Display
Control
Power
Getting Started with the Base Reference Design Demonstration
Setting Up the SP605 Board for the BRD Demonstration
Installing the Application GUI
Default Jumper Settings 11
Connecting the Cables and CompactFlash Memory Card
Setting the CF Configuration Mode 12
Starting the Base Reference Design GUI Application
Setting Ethernet Link
Selecting an Image
Changing the Filter
Getting Started with the Diagnostic Flash Demonstration
Setting the Default Jumper Settings 18
Installing CompactFlash Card, USB UART Cable, and 12V Power
Setting the Mode Select and System ACE CF Select Switches
Installing the USB UART Cable and Driver
Setting Up a Terminal Program 20
Configure with BIST Diagnostic Design 21
Running the Diagnostic Demonstration    22
Installing the ISE Software
Redeeming the Software and IP License 23
Getting Additional Help and Support
Warranty

## **Appendix A: References**

Support Resources	31
Spartan-6 FPGA Documents	31





## Getting Started with the Spartan-6 FPGA SP605 Evaluation Kit

## Introduction

The SP605 Spartan®-6 FPGA Evaluation Kit provides all the basic components for developing broadcast, wireless communications, automotive, and other cost- and power-sensitive applications that require transceiver capabilities in one package. Along with the evaluation board, cables, and documentation, the SP605 evaluation kit provides an integration of hardware, software, intellectual property (IP), and pre-verified reference designs so development can begin right out of the box.

The SP605 evaluation kit provides a flexible environment for system design, including applications that implement features such as high-speed serial transceivers, a PCI Express® interface, DVI, and DDR3 component memory. The SP605 evaluation board includes an industry-standard VITA-57 FPGA Mezzanine Connector (FMC) connector for scaling and customizing to specific applications and markets. Xilinx development tools helps streamline the creation of systems that adhere to complex requirements.

This guide describes how to set up the SP605 evaluation kit and run a diagnostic demonstration that exercises basic board features. It introduces a more complex Base Reference Design (BRD) that exercises key features of the Spartan-6 FPGA. This guide also describes how to install the Xilinx® ISE® Design Suite: Logic Edition software, obtain updates, and generate a license.

## **SP605 Evaluation Kit Contents**

- SP605 Spartan-6 FPGA Evaluation Board
- ISE Design Suite: Logic Edition (device-locked) for the Spartan-6 XC6SLX45T FPGA
  - Includes ChipScope<sup>™</sup> Pro software and the ChipScope Pro serial I/O toolkit
  - Includes PlanAhead<sup>™</sup> design analysis tool
  - Timing driven place and route, SmartGuide<sup>™</sup>, and SmartXplorer technology
- Documentation
  - <u>XTP089</u>, Hardware Setup Guide
  - <u>UG525</u>, SP605 Evaluation Kit Getting Started Guide (this document)
  - <u>UG526</u>, SP605 Hardware User Guide
  - <u>UG527</u>, SP605 Reference Design User Guide

- Schematics and PCB files
- Universal 12V power supply
- Cables
  - Two USB cables
  - Ethernet
  - DVI-to-VGA adapter
- Reference Designs and Demonstrations
  - SP605 Built-In Self Test Applications Design File
  - SP605 BRD Design Files
  - SP605 MultiBoot Design Files
  - SP605 MIG Design File
  - SP605 GTP IBERT Design Files
  - SP605 PCIe® x1 Gen1 Design Files
- Reference designs, demonstrations, documentation, and applications delivered on USB flash drive to get started quickly

## **Key Features**

#### Spartan-6 FPGA

• XC6SLX45T-3C in FGG484 package

## Configuration

- Onboard JTAG configuration circuitry
- 8 MB Quad SPI flash memory
- 32 MB Parallel (BPI) flash memory
- 2 GB CompactFlash (CF) memory card

#### Memory

- 128 MB DDR3 component memory
- 32 MB parallel (BPI) flash memory (also available for configuration)
- 8 Kb IIC EEPROM
- 8 MB Quad SPI flash memory (also available for configuration)

## Communications and Networking

- 10 Mb/s, 100 Mb/s, 1,000 Mb/s Ethernet
- SFP optical transceiver connector
- GTP transceiver port (TX, RX) with four SMA connectors
- USB To UART bridge
- PCI Express® x1 edge connector

## **Expansion Connectors**

- FMC LPC connector (1 GTP transceiver, 68 single-ended or 34 differential userdefined signals)
- User GPIO with two SMA connectors
- 4 user I/O (1 x 6 header)

## Clocking

- 200 MHz oscillator (differential)
- 27 MHz socketed oscillator (single-ended)
- SMA connectors for external clock (differential)
- GTP transceiver reference clock port with two SMA connectors

## Display

- Video DVI/VGA interface
- 16 x 2 LCD character display
- 4 LEDs

## Control

- 4 Pushbuttons
- 4 DIP switches

#### Power

- 12V wall adapter or ATX power supply
- Voltage and current measurement capability of 2.5V, 1.5V, and 1.2V supplies

IIC EEPROM

32MB Parallel (BPI)

Linear Flash Memory



Figure 1-1: SP605 Evaluation Board Features

GTP Transceiver

**Differential Pairs** 

## Getting Started with the Base Reference Design Demonstration

LEDs (4x)

User CLK Socket

PCIe Gen 1

SPI Prog/Se

Header

Before installing the ISE software, some of the included demonstration designs can be run. These designs are preinstalled on the CompactFlash memory card contained in the SP605 evaluation kit and set up to be run immediately, offering an overview of the board's features. (Additional reference designs and application notes can be downloaded from the Xilinx website.) The default Base Reference Design (BRD) demonstration exercises and/or tests the Ethernet, DVI port, DDR3 memory, DSP, and the overall high-speed logic capabilities of the Spartan-6 FPGA. Figure 1-2 shows a block diagram of the Base Reference Design.

12V Fan

Connecto

The SP605 BRD demonstration uses the SP605 board to filter images that are transferred via Ethernet between the SP605 board and a PC. This filtered image is then retrieved by the BRD interface GUI and displayed on a PC. A simple loopback test is used to demonstrate the GTP transceivers. A simple memory test demonstrates the DDR3 connectivity using MIG generator in the CORE Generator<sup>TM</sup> software. Images are sent from a PC via a series of Ethernet packets. This image data is filtered and eventually sent back to the PC for display.

The Ethernet Management section includes an embedded MAC, a GTP transceiver, a PicoBlaze<sup>™</sup> host controller, and a Packet Processing Engine. This section provides a way to control various aspects of the demo, transfer images between the SP605 board and a PC, and receive status from the demo. The MAC and packet processing logic can run at 1,000 Mb/s, 100 Mb/s, or 10 Mb/s, depending on the connection speed to the PC.

The Image Processing structure consists of a 5 x 5-pixel 2D FIR filter that is built using the dedicated Spartan-6 FPGA DSP resources. A multiboot feature also allows this design to be implemented using only logic-that is, without the dedicated DSP blocks.

Power Monitor

UG525 01 030811

Connector

Pushbuttons (4x)



Figure 1-2: SP605 Base Reference Design Block Diagram

## Setting Up the SP605 Board for the BRD Demonstration

## Installing the Application GUI

The Base Reference Design includes an application GUI that must be installed before running the demonstration. On the USB flash drive included with the kit, locate the install image:

SP605\_BRD\_Reference Design  $\rightarrow$  SP605\_BRD\_Application  $\rightarrow$  BaseRefDISetup2\_0\_5.msi

This application is used to display the graphical information for the Base Reference Design. Double-click the MSI file to install the software.

*Note:* The Windows .NET Framework might need to be installed or updated. Go to <a href="http://www.microsoft.com/NET/">http://www.microsoft.com/NET/</a> and click **Get the .NET Framework**.

When running BaseRefDISetup2\_0\_5.msi, an Unknown Publisher Warning appears. Click **Run**, then click **Next** in the Base Reference Design Interface Setup Wizard.



Figure 1-3: Base Reference Design Install Window

This also installs WinPcap, as shown in Figure 1-3 and Figure 1-4. WinPcap is used by the BRD GUI application.



UG525\_04\_101910

Figure 1-4: WinPcap Setup Window

## **Default Jumper Settings**

As shown in Figure 1-5, 2-pin headers J44 and J46 should have jumpers installed across both pins; 3-pin headers J19 and J22 should have jumpers installed across pins 1–2. Headers J9, J10, J13, J45, J47, J48, J49, J58, and J60 should have no jumpers installed.



Figure 1-5: Default Jumper Settings

## Connecting the Cables and CompactFlash Memory Card

The Base Reference Design is one of the demonstrations on the CompactFlash memory card.

Note: Turn off any wireless cards while running this demonstration.

Insert the CF card. Connect the Ethernet cable between the Ethernet RJ45 connectors on the PC and the SP605 board. Connect the DVI port to a DVI-capable monitor, or to a VGA-capable monitor through the DVI-to-VGA adaptor. Plug in the power adaptor to the local AC power. Plug the 12V power jack into the board connector J18. Turn on the power by moving slide switch SW2 to the ON position. See Figure 1-6.





Figure 1-6: Connecting Cables and CF Card

## Setting the CF Configuration Mode

The Base Reference Design is located in the CompactFlash memory card. To select the CF configuration, set DIP switch (SW1) so that both M0 and M1 are in the OFF position, as shown in Figure 1-7.

Now set the System ACE<sup>TM</sup> CF Image Select DIP switch (S1) to 1101 where switches 1, 2, and 4 are set to the ON position and switch 3 is set to the OFF position, as shown in Figure 1-7. Setting switch 4 to the ON position enables the System ACE CF controller. Setting switches 1 and 2 to the ON position selects configuration slot 3, where the Base Reference Design demonstration is located.



Figure 1-7: Setting the Mode Select and System ACE CF Select Switches

## Starting the Base Reference Design GUI Application

To start the application GUI, go to the Windows start menu and select All Programs  $\rightarrow$  XILINX  $\rightarrow$  Base Reference Design  $\rightarrow$  Base Reference Design Interface

The screen shown in Figure 1-8 is displayed.

Base I	Refer	ence Design	Interface				-	
File S	etup	Help						
X							X	Œ
nage De	mo U	ser Defined						
Image								
Select I	mage:							
Scale:			i i i i i i i	01.10	د: ا	hou	Dia	100
mode.		U Adio @	/ Manual		L	now	/ Dis	piay
Contro		1						_
Effect:		Identity	*	0	0	0	0	0
DSP M	ode:	🔿 Logic	OSP48A1	0	0	0	0	0
Input G	iamma:	🗹 Enable	±	0	0	1	0	0
Output	Gamm	a: 🗹 Enable	ł	0	0	0	0	0
Negativ Handlir	ve Resi ig:	ult 💿 Clip 🔘 Absolut	e Value					
Gain:			J			, [	1.00	
Status								
Link: FPGA	Pleas	e select a netv	vork interface Image	from th	ne Se	etup	men	u.
Boa	rd Typ	e: -	Wid	th:				
Ten	nperatu	re: -	Heig	iht:				
VCC	CINT:		Proc	essing	, Tim	ie: -		
VCC	CAUX:	52						
VCL	LINT: CAUX:		Proc	essing	, l in	ie: -	G525	5_

Figure 1-8: Base Reference Design Interface

Load the Base Reference Design demonstration from the CompactFlash memory card. To load from the CF card, reset the FPGA by pressing the System ACE CF reset button (SW9), shown in Figure 1-9.



*Figure 1-9:* **Reset System ACE CF and Load CF Card BRD Demonstration** 



## Setting Ethernet Link

In the Base Reference Design GUI application, select a network from **Setup**  $\rightarrow$  **Network Interface**, as shown in Figure 1-10. The GUI will indicate *Connected to FPGA* and the Ethernet Status LEDs will be active on the SP605 board.

🗑 Base Reference Design Interface			
File Setup Help			
Network Interface	Intel(R) PRO/Wireless 394	945ABG Network Connection - Packet Scheduler Miniport0.0.0.000:19:D2:00:B1:CC	
	Broadcom NetXtreme 57x>	xx Gigabit Controller - Packet Scheduler Miniport169.254.59.3600:15:C5:CC:85:C8	
	Bluetooth Device (Persona	nal Area Network) #20.0.0.000:16:41:B5:A9:71	
/			
Image Demo User Defined			
Image			
Select Image:			
Scale:	100		
F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F F	erer i 🛄		
Mode: 🔿 Auto 💿 Manual	Show Display		
Control			15
Effect:			SP
DSP Mode: O Logic 💿 DSP48A1			ARTAI
Input Gamma: 🗹 Enabled			9 - h
Output Gamma: 💌 Enabled	0 0 0 0 0		
Negative Result 💿 Clip			
Absolute Value			
Gain: 🦯 🗍	1.00		
THE OWNER AND A DESCRIPTION OF	mmmm		
	/		
Status			5 1.8V c131
Link: Please select a network interface fro	m the Setup menu.		
FPGA Image			DS5 DS6 DS7 G
Board Type: - Width:			
Temperature: - Height:			
VCCINT: - Proces	sing Time: •	and and a second	
VCCAUX: -		Ethern	et LEDs
		UG5	25_10_101910

Figure 1-10: Connecting the Ethernet Link

#### Selecting an Image

On the USB flash memory, navigate to the SP605\_BRD\_Reference\_Design → SP605\_BRD\_Images directory and select the fractal1.jpg image. Then click the **Show Display** button.

The default filter effect is an *Identity* function (Figure 1-11). It takes the loaded image and simply processes it without any filtering effect. The image is sent back over the Ethernet link and displayed in the GUI. It is also sent over the DVI display port.



Figure 1-11: Selecting and Displaying an Image

www.xilinx.com

## Changing the Filter

The default filtering in Figure 1-11, page 16 shows the Identity effect. Now use the Effect drop-down box to select *Edge Detect*. Figure 1-12 shows that the Image is filtered using the transform effect. If a DVI or VGA monitor has been connected, this image will also be displayed on the monitor. Other effects can be selected through interaction with the GUI. Note that the 5 x 5 Filter coefficient table changes every time an effect is changed.

Another feature of this Base Reference Design is MultiBoot. See the DSP Mode radio buttons in Figure 1-12. The two DSP Mode selections are Logic and DSP48A1. The default is DSP48A1, which utilizes the digital signal processing (DSP) element in Spartan-6 FPGAs, the DSP48A1 slice. To demonstrate the performance these DSP48A1 slices provide, notice the processing time for the DSP implementation is around 10.66 ms.

Selecting the Logic DSP mode reloads a new FPGA configuration that only uses FPGA logic resources. When the FPGA is reconfigured, the Program and Done LEDs flash. The Ethernet link also disconnects and then reconnects during reconfiguration. The Logic DSP implementation processes the image at about 5x the DSP48A1 implementation, running at about 53.3 ms.



UG525\_12\_102010

Figure 1-12: Changing the Filter

www.xilinx.com

## Getting Started with the Diagnostic Flash Demonstration

In addition to the BRD demonstration, a board diagnostic built-in system test (BIST) can also be run that provides an overview of the SP605 board features. The BIST exercises some of the board features, including testing the UART, flashing the LEDs, reading the switches, and testing the Flash memory, DDR3 component memory, IIC bus, Ethernet PHY, and DVI interface.

## Setting the Default Jumper Settings

Figure 1-13 highlights the default jumper settings, USB Mini-B JTAG connection, CompactFlash memory card location, and 12V power connection.

As shown in Figure 1-13, 2-pin headers J44 and J46 should have jumpers installed across both pins; 3-pin headers J19 and J22 should have jumpers installed across pins 1–2. Headers J9, J10, J13, J45, J47, J48, J49, J58, and J60 should have no jumpers installed.



UG525\_13\_030811

#### *Figure 1-13:* Default Jumper Settings, Cable Connections, and CompactFlash Memory Connection

## Installing CompactFlash Card, USB UART Cable, and 12V Power

- 1. Install the CompactFlash memory card.
- 2. Connect the Mini-B USB cable to the USB connector marked J23 (USB UART), and connect the USB A end of the cable to the PC.
- 3. Plug in the power adapter to local AC power. Plug the 12V power cable into the board connector on J18. Turn on the power by switching the SW1 to the ON position.

## Setting the Mode Select and System ACE CF Select Switches

To run the diagnostic demonstration, set the FPGA Mode DIP switch (SW1) to the BPI Configuration Mode, where both M0 and M1 are in the OFF position, as shown in Figure 1-14.

Set the System ACE CompactFlash Image Select DIP switch (S1) to 0001, where 1, 2, and 3 are set to the OFF position and switch 4 is set to the ON position, as shown in Figure 1-14. This setting addresses configuration 0 on the CompactFlash memory card.



Figure 1-14: Setting the Mode Select and System ACE Select Switches

## Installing the USB UART Cable and Driver

Make sure the USB Mini-B cable is connected to J23 (USB UART). Install the USB UART driver for the Silicon Labs CP2103GM USB-to-UART Bridge located on the USB drive shipped with the SP605 evaluation kit.

Open the computer's Device Manager dialog box by right-clicking the **My Computer** icon and selecting **Properties**. Select the **Hardware** tab and click the **Device Manager** button. Expand the **Ports** (COM and LPT) entry and see what port the CP210X USB to Bridge Controller is connected to. The example in Figure 1-15 shows the CP210X USB to Bridge Controller connected to COM5, but a customer computer might have assigned this to a different COM Port. Right-click to view additional properties settings.



UG525\_15\_102610

Figure 1-15: Setting System Properties to Access USB UART

## Setting Up a Terminal Program

On the PC, open a serial terminal program. This example uses the HyperTerminal serial communications tool included with Windows XP, but any other terminal emulation tool can be used instead.

To open HyperTerminal, select Start  $\rightarrow$  Programs  $\rightarrow$  Accessories  $\rightarrow$  Communications  $\rightarrow$ HyperTerminal. In the Connection Description window, type SP605 Board Diagnostic in the Name box, then click OK. See Figure 1-16.



Figure 1-16: Opening a Terminal Program

In the Connect To window, select the **COM port** that the USB cable is connected to — for example, **COM5** — and click **OK**. See Figure 1-17.

www.xilinx.com

onnect To	?	JL
🧞 SP605 D	Diagnostic Demo	
Enter details for	the phone number that you want to d	lial:
Country/region:	United States (1)	Y
Ar <u>e</u> a code:	1	
Phone number:		
Connect using:	COM5	~
	Conexant HDA D110 MDC V.92 Mo COM4 COM1	ode
	COM5	

Figure 1-17: Setting Up a Terminal Program

Then, in the HyperTerminal Port Settings tab, set the following:

- BAUD rate = **9600**
- Data Bits = **8**
- Parity = None
- Stop Bits = **1**
- File Control = **None**

Then Click **OK**. See Figure 1-18.

Port Settings		
<u>B</u> its per second:	9600	~
<u>D</u> ata bits:	8	*
<u>P</u> arity:	None	*
<u>S</u> top bits:	1	*
Elow control:	None	~
	<u>R</u> estor	re Defaults
0	K Cancel	



## Configure with BIST Diagnostic Design

Confirm that the System ACE Mode (S1) is set to 0001 and push the System ACE Reset (SW9) shown in Figure 1-19.



Figure 1-19: System ACE Reset Switch (SW9)

## Running the Diagnostic Demonstration

From the Diagnostic Demonstration menu, select item 1 **UART Test** to launch a numbers test.

🍫 SP 605 Diagnosti	: Demo - Hype	rTerminal				
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew <u>C</u> all	<u>I</u> ransfer <u>H</u> elp					
🗅 🗳 🍘 🕉 💷	) <del>'1</del> 💕					
LUART Test 3. TUPET to 3. TUPET 4. FLASH Test 5. IIC Test 6. Ethernet Loopbar 7. Switch Test 9. Skitch Test 9. Skitch Test 18. System AB CF T 10. UVUGA Test -	an-6 FPGA SP60 immediate states fest: fest test Test Test	5 Evaluation I				
Connected 0:00:12	Auto detect	9600 8-N-1	SCROLL	CAPS	NUM	Capture
					110	EDE 00 10061

UG525\_20\_102610

Figure 1-20: Diagnostic Demonstration Terminal Window Output

The various diagnostic demonstration menu options can be run to see the different features working on the development board.

www.xilinx.com

At this point, the user should have seen the board powering on, and that features like the UART, switches, LEDs, flash, memories, and ethernet are passing their diagnostic tests. If problems occur, turn to the "Getting Additional Help and Support" section of this guide.

## Installing the ISE Software

The SP605 evaluation kit includes entitlement to a seat that permits the ISE Design Suite: Logic Edition to be used with a Spartan-6 XC6SLX45T FPGA. This software can be installed from the DVD provided with the kit. The latest version can also be downloaded from <a href="http://www.xilinx.com/support/download/index.htm">http://www.xilinx.com/support/download/index.htm</a>.

The SP605 evaluation kit also works with the software listed here:

- ISE Design Suite: Embedded Edition
- ISE Design Suite: DSP Edition
- ISE Design Suite: System Edition

Update the software before working with the evaluation kit. Updates can be downloaded from <a href="http://www.xilinx.com/support/download/index.htm">http://www.xilinx.com/support/download/index.htm</a>

To install the ISE Design Suite: Logic Edition software from the DVD included with the SP605 evaluation kit:

- 1. Activate the software license. See "Redeeming the Software and IP License."
- 2. Insert the DVD provided with the SP605 evaluation kit in the host computer's drive.
- 3. Follow the instructions provided by the installation software.

## Redeeming the Software and IP License

A software voucher similar to the example shown in Figure 1-21 is included with each SP605 evaluation kit. The voucher contains the code that is used to create a device-locked software license for the ISE software and/or the IP included with the evaluation kit.



UG525\_21\_102610

Figure 1-21: Software Voucher

To create a license:

1. Go to <u>www.xilinx.com/getlicense/</u> (Figure 1-22).

	v	Sign in Lar	nguage 🔻 Do	cumentation Do	wnloads Co	Intact
	Λ.			enter keywo	rds Advanced Sear	ch
Product & Services	Technology Solutions	Market Solutions	Support	Buy Online	About Xilir	ıx
Sign in to th	ne Xilinx Licensin	g Site				
User ID Password	<enter id="" user="" your=""> Foract your password? Sign In</enter>		Don't har > Choo produ > Gain > Persy Xilinx > Cre	ve a Xilinx account ise to receive impo- uct information access to special ( onalize your web e) .com ate Account	t yet? rtant news and content sperience on	
Ŀ	lobs Investors Feedback Le	egal Privacy Trademark	ks Sitemap	b f 🐻		

Figure 1-22: Licensing Site Sign-In Page

2. To use an existing Xilinx user account, enter **User ID** and **Password** and click **Sign In**. To create a new account, click **Create Account**.

*Note:* For questions or other help, contact Xilinx customer service at: http://www.xilinx.com/support/techsup/tappinfo.htm.

- 3. After signing in, confirm that the contact information is correct and click **Next**.
- 4. Under the **Create New Licenses** tab, enter the 22-digit code from the voucher in the field shown in Figure 1-23. Click **Redeem Now**.

	/				vnioads Contact
🛃 XILIIN/	(			enter keywor	ds 🔎
					Advanced Search
Product & Services	Technology Solutions	Market Solutions	Support	Buy Online	About Xilinx
ome : Support : Product Li	icensing				
Product Lice	nsing				
					0
Account: Xilinx Test	Account	× "V			🕕 н
Create New Licenses	Manage Licenses L	egacy Licensing Manage	Users		
	oucher ?				
		Redeem Now	aluation al arch the <mark>Evalua</mark> es catalog and le below	nd No Charge ( tion and No Charge add specific cores to	Cores 2
enter voucher	code	Redeem Now Enter 22-digit	aluation al arch the Evalua es catalog and le below code fror	nd No Charge ( tion and No Charge add specific cores to n voucher he	Cores ? Search Now
reate a new license fil ombined in the same I	File for Account: Xilinx e by making your product s icense file.[2]	Redeem Now Enter 22-digit elections from the table below	aluation al arch the Evalue es catalog and le below COCIE fror w. Floating and	nd No Charge ( tion and No Charge add specific cores to n voucher he Node-Locked licens	Cores ? Search Now Pre es cannot be

Figure 1-23: Redeem Voucher

www.xilinx.com

The software represented by the voucher code is added to the product table and is selected (checked) for licensing, as shown in Figure 1-24.

*Note:* The software descriptions shown in Figure 1-24 are examples and might differ from the descriptions shown on the actual page.

5. Click **Generate Node Locked License** at the bottom of the page to start the license generation flow (Figure 1-24).

oduct & Services	Technology Solutions	Market Solution	s Supp	ort Buy	Online	About Xilinx
<u>me</u> : <u>Support</u> : Product Lie	censing					
roduct Lice	nsing					
ccount:		¥				0
eate New Licenses	Manage Licenses	egacy Licensing Man	age Users			
Redeem Vo	oucher ? xx-xxxxxxxx code	Redeem Now	Evaluatio Search the P cores catalog table below	n and No ( valuation and N g and add spec	Charge C lo Charge ific cores to	Search Now
🗸 Voucher red	eemed and added to product	table below.				
Voucher red eate a New License F eate a new license file mbined in the same li Product	eemed and added to product ile for Account: Xilinx e by making your product s cense file.	elections from the table	pelow. Floating	) and Node-Loo Available	ked license:	s cannot be Subscriptic
Voucher red	eemed and added to product <b>ile for Account: Xilinx</b> a by making your product s cense file.[?]	elections from the table	oelow. Floating License	g and Node-Loo Available Seats	sked license	s cannot be Subscriptic End Date
Voucher red eate a New License F eate a new license file mbined in the same li Product ISE Design Suite: 30-	eemed and added to product ile for Account: Xilinx a by making your product s cense file. [?] -Day Evaluation, Node-Locked	elections from the table Type License Evaluation	below. Floating License Node	g and Node-Loo Available Seats 1/1	ked license Status Current	s cannot be Subscriptic End Date 30 days
Voucher red  ate a New License Fle  ate a new license file  mbined in the same li  Product  ISE Design Suite: 30-  ISE Design Suite: We	eemed and added to product ile for Account: Xilinx a by making your product s icense file.	elections from the table Type License Evaluation No Charge	Delow. Floating License Node : Node	g and Node-Loo Available Seats 1/1 1/1	Status Current Current	s cannot be Subscriptio End Date 30 days None
Voucher red  ate a New License F eate a new license file mbined in the same li  Product ISE Design Suite: 30- ISE Design Suite: We Spartan-6 FPGA Em	eemed and added to product ile for Account: Xilinx e by making your product s cense file. [2] -Day Evaluation, Node-Locked bPACK License bedded Kit - ISE Design Suite	elections from the table Type License Evaluation No Charge Embedded Devic Full	License Node Node Node	g and Node-Loa Available Seats 1/1 1/1 1/1	Status Current Current Current	s cannot be Subscriptic End Date 30 days None 26 Aug 201
Voucher red eate a New License Fle eate a new license file mbined in the same li Product ISE Design Suite: 30- ISE Design Suite: We Spartan-6 FPGA Em Spartan-6 FPGA SPE	eemed and added to product ile for Account: Xilinx a by making your product s cense file.[?] -Day Evaluation, Node-Locked abPACK License abedded Kit - ISE Design Suite 505 Evaluation Kit - ISE Design	elections from the table Type License Evaluation No Charge Embedded Devic Ful Suite: Logic De Ful	License Node Node Node Node Node	g and Node-Loo Available Seats 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1	ked license Status Current Current Current Current	s cannot be Subscriptio End Date 30 days None 26 Aug 201 31 Aug 201
Voucher red  ate a New License Fle  ate a new license file mbined in the same li  Product  ISE Design Suite: 30-  ISE Design Suite: We  Spartan-6 FPGA Em  Spartan-6 FPGA SPE	eemed and added to product ile for Account: Xilinx a by making your product s icense file.	elections from the table Type License Evaluation No Charge Embedded Devik Full Suite: Logic Def Full	License Node Node Node Node Node	g and Node-Loo Available Seats 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1	ked license Status Current Current Current Current	s cannot be Subscripti End Date 30 days None 26 Aug 20 31 Aug 20
Voucher red  atte a New License Fle  eate a new license file mbined in the same li  Product ISE Design Suite: 30- ISE Design Suite: We Spartan-6 FPGA Em Spartan-6 FPGA SPE	eemed and added to product ile for Account: Xilinx e by making your product s cense file.[?] -Day Evaluation, Node-Locked bPACK License bedded Kit - ISE Design Suite 305 Evaluation Kit - ISE Design	elections from the table Elections from the table Elections from the table Evaluation No Charge Embedded Devic Ful Suite: Logic De Ful	License Node Node Node Node Node	g and Node-Loo Available Seats 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1 1/1	ked license Status Current Current Current Current	s cannot be Subscriptic End Date 30 days None 26 Aug 201 31 Aug 201

Figure 1-24: Generate License

6. When prompted to select a host name for the license, select a host ID. The host ID can be a dongle serial number, Ethernet MAC address, or a disk volume ID.

7. When license generation is complete, the license will be emailed. Follow the instructions in the Xilinx License email to complete the licensing process (Figure 1-25).

🗿 Inbox - Microsoft Ou	utlook						1 🗙
Eile Edit Yiew Go	Iools Actions Help Adobe PDF	-		Т	ype a question	for help	<b>•</b>
🖸 New 🔸 🎒 🎦 🗙	🙈 Reply 🖓 Reply to All 🙈 Form	ard   📑 Send/Re	egeive 👻 😰 Find 🖄	,   🧑   🔝 🛛 Type a cont	act to find	- 21	<b>i</b>
Mail	Look for: 👻	Search In 👻 Inbo	× Find	Now Clear	с	ptions •	×
Favorite Folders	Inbox						
<b>Inbox</b> [346]	🖾 : 🗋 🛛 From	То	Subject		Received	Size N	7 🔺
Unread Mail	EE Times Newsletter	Jim Burnham	EE Times Newsletter	r TSMC Yields \\ Cre.	Mon 11/	29	2
Sent Items	a 🔅 xlinx.notification@entitl.	Jim Burnham	Xilinx, Inc. – License Fil	e for Your Software or I	Mon 11/9	17	2
Do-List-2009	2						~
Read-2009 in Arcl Save-2009 in Arcl	Viliny Inc. Liconos	Tile for Vour	Software or ID	Coro Braduat			
All Mail Folders	viliny notification@ontitle		Soltware of IF	Core Froduct			
🖃 🧐 Mailbox - Jim Burr 🛆	xiinx.nouncauon@enuu	SHOW.COTT					-1
💿 Deleted Ite	Extra line breaks in this message	were removed.					- 1
Drafts [59]	To: <your here="" name=""></your>	<u>_</u>					
Junk E-mail	Attachments a XIIIX.IIC (2 Kt	<u></u>					-
Cutbox	Dear < Your Name Here> :						^
Request SPI	Thank you for licens	ing your Xi	linx® software	or IP core prod	uct. This		
🖂 Mail	email confirms your	product reg	istration and i	includes the lic	ense file	to	
Calandar	enable your product.						
Calcindar	The license file can	also be ob	tained by retur	ning to the Xil	inx Produ	ict	
8 Contacts	Download and Licensi	ng Site:	-	_			
🇳 Tasks	http://www.xilinx.co	m/getproduc	t				
s 🖬 🖬 🗧	For complete instrue	tions on in	atalling this 1	ligorgo filo do	- + b. TCF		~
346 Items				All folders are up to	date. 🗿 Co	nnected	•
					UG525 2	5 110	5810

Figure 1-25: Xilinx License Notification E-mail

8. Go back to the Xilinx License Configuration Manager dialog and click **Copy License...** (Figure 1-26).



Figure 1-26: Manage Xilinx License Tab

9. Navigate to the location where the Xilinx.lic file is saved and select it (Figure 1-27).

Look jn:	🞯 Desktop		-	<b>(</b>		HH •	
My Documents My Computer My Computer	My Documer My Compute My Network SAV Global F DixX Vision My Network My Network Minx.lic Type: I Date M Size: 1	its ir Places ess Tools tedirect Fools IC File odfified: 11/9/2009 11:01 AM 98 KB					
My Network Places	File <u>n</u> ame:	Xilinx.lic			•		<u>O</u> pen
					-		

Figure 1-27: Select the Xilinx.lic file

The ISE software license is now installed. Click **OK** on the Success Dialog (Figure 1-28) to close the Xilinx License Configuration Manager.

		and a								
Acquire a Licer	nse Mai	hage Xilinx	licenses							
Instructions: button to cop	Xilinx appli by a license e	cations aut file into th	omatically deter s directory.	it valid, nod	le-locked licen	ses (*.lic) resid	ing in the local	.Xiînx directo	ry. Use the	Copy License
To point to a users will nee 1234@serve	floating se ed to make r:/usr/local	rver license these settii /flexlm (Lin	, or to point to ngs outside of t .x)	license files his applicatio	in locations o on.) Example	ther than .Xilin: s: 1234@serve	<, set one of th r;C:\licenses\X	ne environmer ilinx.lic (Windo	nt variables t ows) or	elow. (Linux
XILINXD_LICENSE_FILE				🗖 Xilinx	License C	onfiguration	Manager	×)		Set
LM_LICENSE	_FILE			(j)	License instal	lation was succ	essful.			Set
Feature 👻	S/W or IP Core	Version Limit	Expiration Date	v		ОК				_
XC6SLX45T	S/W	2010.09	Permanent					C6SLX45T	.software.p	ermanent. 17. 🎽
Local System Hostname: Network Inte C: Drive Seri FLEXID Dong	Informatio erface Card al Number: ile ID:	n   (NIC) ID:	xsjjimbo3 0015c5cc85c8 906356ab	,0019d200b	1cc,001641b	ia971				
About	1							(	<u>R</u> efresh	lose

Figure 1-28: License Installation Successful

## **Getting Additional Help and Support**

For questions regarding products within the Product Entitlement Account or if it is believed a notification was received in error, send an e-mail message to the appropriate regional Customer Service Representative:

Canada, USA and South America — <u>isscs\_cases@xilinx.com</u>

Europe, Middle East, and Africa — eucases@xilinx.com

Asia Pacific including Japan — apaccase@xilinx.com

For technical support including the installation and use of the product license file, contact Xilinx Online Technical Support at <u>www.support.xilinx.com</u>. The following resources for assistance can be found at this site:

Software, IP and Documentation Updates

Access to Technical Support Web Tools

Searchable Answer Database with Over 4,000 Solutions

User Forums

## Warranty

THIS LIMITED WARRANTY applies solely to standard hardware development boards and standard hardware programming cables manufactured by or on behalf of Xilinx ("Development Systems"). Subject to the limitations herein, Xilinx warrants that Development Systems, when delivered by Xilinx or its authorized distributor, for ninety (90) days following the delivery date, will be free from defects in material and workmanship and will substantially conform to Xilinx publicly available specifications for such products in effect at the time of delivery. This limited warranty excludes: (i) engineering samples or beta versions of Development Systems (which are provided "AS-IS" without warranty); (ii) design defects or errors known as "errata"; (iii) Development Systems procured through unauthorized third parties; and (iv) Development Systems that have been subject to misuse, mishandling, accident, alteration, neglect, unauthorized repair or installation. Furthermore, this limited warranty shall not apply to the use of covered products in an application or environment that is not within Xilinx specifications or in the event of any act, error, neglect or default of Customer. For any breach by Xilinx of this limited warranty, the exclusive remedy of Customer and the sole liability of Xilinx shall be, at the option of Xilinx, to replace or repair the affected products, or to refund to Customer the price of the affected products. The availability of replacement products is subject to product discontinuation policies at Xilinx. Customer may not return product without first obtaining a customer return material authorization (RMA) number from Xilinx.

THE WARRANTIES SET FORTH HEREIN ARE EXCLUSIVE. XILINX DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR NON-INFRINGEMENT, AND ANY WARRANTY THAT MAY ARISE FROM COURSE OF DEALING, COURSE OF PERFORMANCE, OR USAGE OF TRADE. (2008.10)

www.xilinx.com

**EXILINX**.



Do not throw Xilinx products marked with the "crossed out wheelie bin" in the trash. Directive 2002/96/EC on waste electrical and electronic equipment (WEEE) requires the separate collection of WEEE. Customer cooperation is essential in ensuring the proper management of WEEE and the protection of the environment and human health from potential effects arising from the presence of hazardous substances in WEEE. Return the marked products to Xilinx for proper disposal. Further information and instructions for free-of-charge return available at: <a href="http://www.xilinx.com/ehs/weee.htm">http://www.xilinx.com/ehs/weee.htm</a>.







## Appendix A

## References

This appendix lists support and document references for Spartan-6 devices and the SP605 Evaluation Kit.

## Support Resources

The SP605 Evaluation Kit product website describes the evaluation kit, provides ordering information, and links to other relevant webpages:

<u>http://www.xilinx.com/products/devkits/EK-S6-SP605-G.htm</u>

The SP605 documentation website provides access to documents, reference design files, and other SP605 board collateral:

<u>http://www.xilinx.com/products/boards/sp605/reference\_designs.htm</u>

The Xilinx support website provides access to a variety of support resources including an answers database search, WebCase support, and contact information:

<u>http://www.xilinx.com/support</u>

## **Spartan-6 FPGA Documents**

Spartan-6 device documentation is listed here:

<u>DS160</u>, *Spartan-6 Family Overview* This document outlines the features and product selection of the Spartan-6 family.

<u>DS162</u>, Spartan-6 FPGA Data Sheet: DC and Switching Characteristics This data sheet contains the DC and switching characteristic specifications for the Spartan-6 family.

UG385, Spartan-6 FPGA Packaging and Pinouts Specification

This specification lists device/package combinations, pin definitions, pinout tables, pinout diagrams, thermal specifications and mechanical drawings.

<u>UG380</u>, Spartan-6 FPGA Configuration User Guide This user guide describes configuration interfaces, multi-bitstream management, bitstream encryption, boundary-scan and JTAG configuration, and reconfiguration techniques.

<u>UG381</u>, Spartan-6 FPGA SelectIO Resources User Guide This guide describes the SelectIO<sup>™</sup> resources available in all Spartan-6 devices.

#### UG382, Spartan-6 FPGA Clocking Resources User Guide

This user guide describes the clocking resources available in all Spartan-6 devices, including the DCMs and PLLs.

#### UG388, Spartan-6 FPGA Memory Controller User Guide

This user guide describes the Spartan-6 FPGA memory controller block, a dedicated embedded multi-port memory controller that greatly simplifies interfacing Spartan-6 FPGAs using popular memory standards.

#### <u>UG383</u>, Spartan-6 FPGA Block RAM Resources User Guide This user guide describes the Spartan-6 device block RAM capabilities.

#### UG384, Spartan-6 FPGA Configurable Logic Block User Guide

This user guide describes the capabilities of the configurable logic blocks (CLBs) available in all Spartan-6 FPGAs.

#### UG386, Spartan-6 FPGA GTP Transceivers User Guide

This user guide describes the GTP transceivers available in the Spartan-6 LXT FPGAs.

#### UG389, Spartan-6 FPGA DSP48A1 Slice User Guide

This user guide describes the architecture of the DSP48A1 slice in Spartan-6 FPGAs and provides configuration examples.

#### UG393, Spartan-6 FPGA PCB Design and Pin Planning Guide

This guide provides information on PCB design for Spartan-6 devices, with a focus on strategies for making design decisions at the PCB and interface level.

#### <u>UG654</u>, Spartan-6 FPGA Integrated Endpoint Block for PCI Express User Guide This User Guide describes the function and operation of the Spartan-6 FPGA Integrated Endpoint Block for PCI Express®, including how to design, customize, and implement it.

#### UG672, Spartan-6 FPGA Power Management User Guide

This user guide provides information on the various hardware methods of power management in Spartan-6 FPGAs, primarily focusing on the suspend mode.

## **X-ON Electronics**

Largest Supplier of Electrical and Electronic Components

Click to view similar products for Programmable Logic IC Development Tools category:

Click to view products by Xilinx manufacturer:

Other Similar products are found below :

DK-DEV-5SGXEA7N 88980182 DEV-17526 DEV-17514 LCMXO3L-SMA-EVN 471-014 80-001005 iCE40UP5K-MDP-EVN ALTNITROC5GX 471-015 Hinj SnoMakrR10 DK-DEV-1SDX-P-A DK-DEV-1SDX-P-0ES DK-DEV-1SGX-L-A DK-DEV-1SMC-H-A DK-DEV-1SMX-H-0ES DK-DEV-1SMX-H-A DK-DEV-4CGX150N DK-DEV-5CGTD9N DK-DEV-5CSXC6N DK-MAXII-1270N DK-SI-1SGX-H-A DK-SI-1STX-E-0ES DK-SI-1STX-E-A DK-SI-5SGXEA7N EK-10M08E144 ATF15XX-DK3-U SLG46824V-DIP SLG46826V-DIP 240-114-1 6003-410-017 ICE40UP5K-B-EVN DK-SOC-1SSX-L-D ICE5LP4K-WDEV-EVN L-ASC-BRIDGE-EVN LC4256ZE-B-EVN LCMXO2-7000HE-B-EVN LCMXO3D-9400HC-B-EVN LCMXO3L-6900C-S-EVN LF-81AGG-EVN LFE3-MEZZ-EVN LIF-MD6000-ML-EVN LPTM-ASC-B-EVN M2S-HELLO-FPGA-KIT VIDEO-DC-USXGMII 12GSDIFMCCD SFP+X4FMCCD NAE-CW305-04-7A100-0.10-X NOVPEK CVLite